
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The following document was not prepared by the Office of the State Auditor, but was 
prepared by and submitted to the Office of the State Auditor by a private CPA firm.  The 
document was placed on this web page as it was submitted.  The Office of the State 
Auditor assumes no responsibility for its content or for any errors located in the 
document.  Any questions of accuracy or authenticity concerning this document should 
be submitted to the CPA firm that prepared the document. The name and address of the 
CPA firm appears in the document. 



 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

For the Year Ended 
June 30, 2018 

Franks, Franks, Wilemon & Hagood, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 



NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ............................................ ..... ..... .... ... .. .... ... .. . . 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS .. ..... ....... ... ... ... ...... ... ...... .. .... ........ ..... ........... .. ... 1 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

Statement of Net Position ...... ........... ....... .... ..... ................ ..................... .. .... ................. .. ... 14 

Statement of Financial Position - NWCC Foundation .......... .. ............ ..... .... .... ......... .... .... 15 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ... .. .. ... ............ .............. 16 

Statement of Activities - NWCC Foundation ..... ...... .. ... ........... ... .. ... ..... .......... ........ .. .. ...... 17 

Statement of Cash Flows ...... .... ....................... ................ .... ....... .......... ............................ 18 

Statement of Cash Flows - NWCC Foundation ...... ... .. .. ..... ........ ..... ...... .. .. .... .. .. .. ............. 20 

Notes to Financial Statements .............. .. ........ ... ......... .... .. ........ ............. ....... ... .. ....... .. ... .. . 21 

Notes to Financial Statements - NWCC Foundation ............................... ... ...... .. .. ............ 40 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Schedule of College's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ........... ... .. ..... ... ... 46 
Schedule College Contributions (PERS) ...... ... ..... .. ... .. ......... ................. .. .... ... .. ..... ............ 46 
Schedule of College's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability ... ......... ....... ... .. .. .... 47 
Schedule College Contributions (OPEB) ................................................................. .. .. ...... 47 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information .......... .. ........ ... ............ ............... .. ....... 48 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards .. ................ ..... ..... ... ......... ... .......... ...... ........ 50 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ........ .. .... ...... ..... .. ............ ... .... . 51 

OTHER REPORTS: 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards ........... .. ............ ... ... ... .. .... .. ...... ...... .... .. ... ..... .... .. ....... 52 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Uniformed Guidance ....... .. ... .. ......... . 54 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with State 
Laws and Regulations ..... .......... ...... .. ......... ............... .. .......... ..... ..... .......................... .. 56 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs .. ............ ....... .. .. .... ....... ... .. ... .. ...... ... .... ......... 57 



P.O. Box 731 

Tupelo, MS 38802 

(662) 844-5226 

P.O. Box 355 

Fulton, MS 38843 

(662) 862-4967 

Board of Directors 

FRANKS I FRANKS I WILEMON I HAGOOD 

www.ffwhcpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Northwest Mississippi Community College 

Report on Financial Statements 

Partners 

Gary Franks, CPA 

Bryon Wilemon, CPA 

Jonathan Hagood, CPA 

Rudolph Franks, CPA (emeritus) 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely 
presented component unit of Northwest Mississippi Community College as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material mis-statement, whether due to fraud or-error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility Is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the 
financial statements of Northwest Mississippi Community College Foundation, which represents 100 percent of 
the assets and revenues of the discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts for 
Northwest Mississippi Community College Foundation, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the Uhited States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial 
statements of Northwest Mississippi Community College Foundation were not audited in accordance with 
Governmental Auditing Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of Northwest 
Mississippi Community College, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
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applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, the Schedule of the College's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the 
Schedule of College Contributions (PERS), Schedule of the College's Proportionate Share of the Net OPES 
Liability, and the Schedule of College Contributions (OPES) on pages 1-13, 46, 46, 47 and 47, respectively, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the ihformation for consistency with management's responses to our inquires, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opin ion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the respon·sibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated, In all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 7, 2019 on 
our consideration of Northwest Mississippi Community College's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Northwest Mississippi Community College's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

FRANKS, FRANKS, WILEMON & HAGOOD, P.A. 
Fulton, Mississippi 
February 7, 2019 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Thi ecLion of the Northwe L Mis i ippi Community College (the "College') annual financia l report presents 
our di cu ion and analysi of the financial performance of the College during the fiscal year ended June 30, 
20 18. This di cu ion ha been prepared by management along with the financial tatements and related 
footnote di ·clo ·ure. and ·hould be read in conj unction wiU1 and is qualified in i.t entirety by 1he financial 
statements and footnotes. The financial statements, footnotes, and this discussion are the responsibility of the 
college's management. 

Using this Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance with the 
Government Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments and GASB Statement No. 35, 
Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and 
Universities. 

One of the most important questions asked is whether the College as a whole is better or worse off 
because of the year's activities. The key to under landing thi questi n is the Statement of Net Position, 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Po ilion, and the Statement of Cash Flows. 
These statements present financial information in a form similar to that used by corporations and are 
prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the 
ervi e is provided and expenses and liabiliti ar,~ recognized when others provide the service, regardless 

of when cash is exchanged. 

The Statement of Net Position includes all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources. The College's Net Position (the difference between assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources) are one indicator of the College's financial health. 
Over time, increases or decreases in Net Position are one indicator of the improvement or erosion of the 
College's financial health when considered with non-financial facts such as enrollment levels and the 
condition of the facilities. 

h Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the revenues earned and the 
expenses incurred during the year. Activities are reported as eilher operating or non-operating. The 
financial reporting model cla ifies Stat appr priations and gifts as non-operating revenues. The 
College dependency on State aid and gifts result in an operating deficit. The utilization of long-lived 
assets, referred to as Capital Assets, is reflected in the financial statements as depreciation, which 
amortizes the cost of an asset over its expected useful life. 

Another important factor to consider when evaluating financial viability is the College's ability to meet 
financial obligations as they mature. The Statement of Cash Flows presents information related to cash 
inflows and outflows summarized by operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and 
investing activities. 



NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 

Restated Increase 
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 (Decrea e) 

Assets 
Current Assets $ 15,448,554 $ 12,067,660 $ 3,380,894 
Non Current Assets 

Other 7,170,383 7,545,352 (374,969) 
Long-term Receivable 700,000 800,000 (100,000) 
Capital, Net 91,669,631 93,474,020 (1 ,804,389) 

Total Assets 114,988,568 113,887,032 1,101 536 

Def erred Outflows of Resources 15 741 489 21 529 759 (5,788,270) 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 3,708,997 2,964,322 744,675 
Noncurrent Liabilities 83,345,349 84,902,296 (1,556,947) 

Total Liabilities 87 054,346 87 866 618 (81 2,272) 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 9,749,880 5,710,993 4 038,887 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 91,669,631 93,052,080 (1,382,449) 
Restricted 

Expendable 7,515,297 7,651,828 (136,531) 
Unrestricted (65,259,097) (58,864,728) (6,394,369) 

Total Net Position $ 33 925 831 $ 41 ,839,180 $ (7 913 349) 

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in the College' s bank accounts that are unrestricted as to its use. 
The total amount of cash and cash equivalents reported as current assets on the College financial 
statements was $10,810,808 at June 30, 2018, compared to the fiscal year 2017 amount of $7,298,405 . 
This increase is primarily due to the completion of capital projects related to student housing facilities in 
previous fiscal years. 
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Accounts Receivable 

NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Accounts receivable relate to several transactions including county appropnat1ons, accrued interest, 
student tuition and fee billing , and auxiliary enterprise ale uch as fo od ervice and b okstore. In 
addition, accounts receivable ari from grant awards and financial aid revenues. The receivable are 
hown net of an allowance for doubtful account. Account receivable wa. $3, 187, 177 al June 30, 2018'. 

compared to the fiscal year 2017 amount of $2,889,310. This increase is a result of timing on the receipt 
of state funds. 

Inventories 

The College maintains inventories of merchandise for resale in the Northwest Bookstore. Books, student 
upplies, and institutional memorabilia make up the majority of the resale inventory. Inventories totaled 
'701,040 at June 30, 2018, and $904,139 at June 30, 201 7. The decrease in fi cal year 201 8 inventory is 

due to timing on the shipping of books for the Fall semester. This decrease can be attributed to the 
College's increased transition to electronic books for the 2018 fiscal year. With this transition, there were 
significantly less books in transit at year-end 2018. 

Long-term Receivable-Current Portion 

Long-term receivable consists of the agreement with Marshall County to pay the College $1,000,000 of 
back taxes over a period of ten years. The outstanding balance reported as a current asset at June 30, 2018 
was $100,000, which is due in the next fiscal year. 

Prepaid Expcn es 

Prepaid Expenses consist of amounts paid for insurance premiums which cover the next fiscal year and 
amount submitted to the Bureau of Buildings for the College's share of future construction projects. 
Prepaid expen e totaled $649,529 at June 30, 2018, in comparison to $875,806 at June 30, 2017. 

Non-current Assets 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents that are considered restricted, non-current assets include cash held in restricted 
funds lo be used for the purpo e of maintaining the required balance in the unemployment compen ation 
fund and cash held in the unexpended plant fund for future capital improvements. The amount of 
re. tricted cash and cash equivalents al June 30, 2018 totaled $7, 170 383, in compari on to $7 545 352 at 
June 30, 2017. During fiscal year 2018, funds decreased due to funds being released from obligations 
related to current and future capital projects on campus. Most notably the capital related repairs to student 
housing facilities. 

Long-term Receivable 

Long-term receivable consists of the agreement with Marshall County to pay the College $1,000,000 of 
back taxes over a period of ten years. The outstanding balance reported as a long-term asset at June 30, 
2018 was $700,000, compared to $800,000 at June 30, 2017, while the current portion of the long-term 
receivable at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 was $100,000. 

3 



Capital Assets. Net 

NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Capital assets, net, consist of land, livestock, construction in progress, improvements and infrastructure, 
buildings, equipment, and historical library holdings at June 30, 2018. The amount reported is net of 
accumulated deprecialion. Capital asset , net totaled to $91 ,669,63 1 at June 30 2018, in c · mpari on to 
$93,474,020 at June 30, 2017. The largest portion of capital as et of the College con ist of building . 
The amounl reported prior to d preciation at June 30, 20 LS totaled $106 265 562- or 72.74% of total 
capital assets compared to $96,169,713 or 66.47% of total capital a. ets at June 30, 2017. These building 
are used for housing students, classrooms, and faculty and staff offices. 

The College also has some $1,387,833 estimated to complete various capital projects at June 30, 2018 
compared to $2,355,704 at June 30, 2017. 

Deferred Outflow of Re ources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position chat applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow of re ources (expen e) m1til then. Defened outflow of resources consist Other Post 
• mployment Benefits "OPEB ' as well as pensions The deferred outflow of re. ource related to OPEB 
total $217,147 at June 30, 2018 compared to $0 at June 30, 2017, due to the implementation of GAS:S 
Statement No. 75 in the 2018 fiscal year. The deferred outflow of resources related to pension total 
$15 524,342 at June 30, 2018 compared to $21 ,522,015 at June 30, 2017. This decrease in deferred 
outflow is related to a significant decrease in deferred outflow from the State retirement system's 
performance in fiscal year 2017 (measurement period of PERS). 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilitie 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts due at June 30, 2018 for employee benefits, 
accrued payroll, and for unpaid goods and services received before the end of the fiscal year. The 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities totaled $3,094,605 at June 30, 2018, in comparison to $2,222,674 
at June 30, 2017. The increase is related to the timing of certain employee benefits being paid at the end of 
each fiscal year. 

Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue represents revenue that was received by the College during the fiscal year that the 
College had not earned or expended by the end of the June 30, 2018 fiscal year. The unearned revenue 
totaled $386,300 at June 30, 2018, and $262,335 at June 30, 2017 . This increase is due to the timing of 
students who register for second summer term classes that do not begin until the next fiscal year. 

Long-Term Liabilities - Current Portion 

The current portion of long-term liabilities represents the portion of bond and note indebtednes that is to 
be payable within one year of June 30, 2018 . The amount of the long-term liabilitie -current p rtion at 
June 30, 2018 was $0, as compared to $420,000 at June 30, 2017. The College's debt was paid off during 
the 2018 fiscal year. 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Other Current Liabi]ities 

Other current liabilities represent the amounts held in an agency capacity for student clubs and other 
organizations. The amount of other current liabilities at June 30, 2018 was $68,414, as compared to 
$59,313 atJune 30, 2017. 

Non-current Liabilities 

Deposit Refundable 

Deposits refundable represent assets belonging to an individual for which the College acts as custodian. 
Deposits refundable at June 30, 2018 consist of room deposits paid by dormitory students and held in 
re erve by the College for the students. The depo iLS are refunded once the student withdraws from the 
dormitory. The total amount held for others at June 30, 201 8 was $133,426 and $117,201 at June 30, 
2017. 

Net OPEB Liability 

This liability is the College's present obligation to pay OPEB in the future, which is calculated as the 
pre ent value of the projected future benefit payment attributable to current and former employee ' 
ervi e rendered. Th.is is al o c nsidered the part of an empl yee ' compen ation earned and deferred for 

furur payment. The net OPEB liability wa $3,745,544 at June 30, 201 8. with $159;678 considered due 
wilhin the next fi cal year, while the at Jun 30, 2017 there wa n OPEB liability. Thi increase i a 
result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 in the 2018 fiscal year. 

Net Pen ion Liability 

This liability is the College's present obligation to pay pension benefits in the future, which is calculated 
as the present value of the projected future benefit payments attributable to current and former employees' 
services rendered. Thi is also considered the part of an employees' compeo ation earned and deferred for 
future payment. The net pension liability wa $79,626,057 at June 30, 2018 and $84,775,411 at June 30, 
2017. This decrease is a direct result in the State retirement system's performance for the year ended June 
30, 2017 (PERS measurement period). 

Deferred Intlow of Resources 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
repre ent an acqui lli n of net po iLion that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resource (revenue) until then. The deferred inflow of resources related to OPEB totals 
$190,722 at June 30, 2018 and $0 at June 30, 2017. This increase is a result of the implementation of 
GASB Statement No. 75 in the 2018 fiscal year. The deferred inflow of resources related to pensions 
totals $9,559,158 at June 30, 2018 and $5,710,993 at June 30, 2017. This decrease is a direct result in the 
State retirement system's performance for the year ended June 30, 2017 (PERS measurement period). 

Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between the College's assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. During fiscal year 2018, total net position decreased by 
$4,230,544 or 10.33%. The College' s net position is presented as unrestricted, restricted - expendable, 
and net investment in capital assets. This decrease is directly related to the performance of the State 
retirement system's during fiscal year 2017 (PERS measurement period), as seen in the "Analysis of Net 
Position" and "Operating Expenses" sections below. 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Analysis of Net Position 

Unrestricted net position is net position available to the College for any lawful purpose. The following is a 
breakdown of unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017: 

Restated Increase 
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 (Decrease) 

Unrestricted General Fund $ 9,587,664 $ 8,343,024 $ I 244 640 
Unrestricted Auxiliary Fund 2,533,23 1 I 756,637 776,594 
Unrestricted OPEB and Pension Fund (77,379,992) (68,964,389) (8 415,603) 

Total Unrestricted Net Position $ (65,259,097) $ (58,864 728) $ (6,394,369) 

The decrease in Unrestricted Net Position is related to the OPEB and Pension Fund's Net Position. The 
College's pension expense related to the State retirement system was over $9.4 million in fiscal year 2018. 

Restricted - xpendable net position consi t of gifts or grants from 1hird-parties with pecific expenditure 
and/or other legal re Lrictions. The following i a breakdown of Resu·icted - expendable net position as of 
June 30, 2018 and June .,o 20 L 7: 

Restated Increase 
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 (Decrease) 

Restricted - expendable for 
Unemployment benefits $ 117,237 $ 116,276 $ 961 
Capital improvements 7,398,060 7,535,552 (137,492) 

Total Restricted - Expendable 

Net Position $ 7,515,297 $ 7 651 828 $ (136 531) 

The decrease in Restricted- Expendable Net Position is related to multiple capital projects taking place at 
the College during the 2018 fiscal year. The Colleg is well aware of the balance in the Unexpended Plant 
Fund's Net Position, therefore there is no fear of fully depleting the Net Position of this fund. 

Net investment in capital assets, consists of the College's net position invested in capital assets less the 
amount of outstanding capital related debt: 

June 30, 2018 

Net investment in capital assets $ 91,669,631 

6 

June 30, 2017 

$ 93,052,080 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ (1,382,449) 



NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 with comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Variance 
Restated Positive 

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 (Negat·ive) 

Total Operating Revenues $ 38,563,161 $ 40,006,064 $ (1,442,903) 

Total Operating Expenses 76,522,563 78,920,429 2,397,866 

Net Operating Loss (37,959,402) (38,914,365) 954,963 

Nonoperating Revenues(Expenses): 26,946,966 28,549,679 (1,602,713} 

Income (Loss) before Other Revenues, Expenses, 
Gains, or Losses (11,012,436) ( l 0,364,686) (647 750) 

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, or Losses 6,781,892 9,874,850 (3,092 958) 

Change in Net Position (4,230,544) (489,836) (3,740,708) 

Net Position 
Net Position Beginning of Year 41,839,180 42,329,016 (489,836) 
Prior Period Adjusment (3,682 805) (3,682,805) 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as restated 38,156,375 42,329,016 ~4 [72,641) 

Net Position End of Year $ 33,925,831 $ 41,839,180 $ (7,913,349) 

Total operating loss for the fiscal year 2018 wa $37,959,402 while the Joss for fiscal year 2017 was 
$38 914,365. Since the State of Mi i ippi appropriati n i n l included within operating revenue per 
GA B No. 35 the College will always how a ignificant operating los . . 

The sources of operating revenue for the College are tuition and fees, grants and contracts, auxiliary 
services, and other operating revenue. 

The College strives to provide students with the opportunity to obtain a quality education. Future 
enrollments at the College may be affected by a number of factors including any material increases in tuition 
and other mandatory charges stemming from any material decrease in appropriation funding from the State 
of Mississippi. 

Total operating revenues for fiscal year 2018 were $38,563,161, compared to $40,006,064 for fiscal year 
2017. Tuition and fees were $8,744,260, compared to $9,015,541 for fiscal year 2017, net of the tuition 
discount which was $11,921,004 for fiscal year 2018, compared to $11 ,082,352 for fiscal year 2017. The 
decrease in operating revenue is due to a decrease in full-time emollment for fiscal year 2018. 

Operating expen es for fi cal year 2018, including depreciation and amortization of $3 796,891, and pen ion 
expense of $9 457 6 2, t taled $76,522,563. Operating expen es for fiscal year 20 17 totaled $78,920,429 
including depreciation and amortization of $3,565,025 and pensi o expense of $9,866,361. Operating 
expenses decreased in the current fiscal year due to a decrease in capital related repairs and maintenance 
projects that did not meet capitalization thresholds. 

Instructional expenditures composed 33 .37% of the fiscal year 2018 operating expenses and 32.51 % of the 
fiscal year 2017 operating expenses. 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Revenues 

Operating Revenu 

Tuition and Fees 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Tuition and fee in ludes all tu1t1on and related fees assessed for educational purposes totaling 
$20,665,264 for fiscal year 2018, in compari on to $20,097,893 for fiscal year 2017. The tuition discount 
for the 2018 fiscal year wa $ l l ,921,004 compared to the fiscal year 2017 tuition discount of 
$11,082,352. The tuition and fees increase is a direct result of a board approved tuition rate increase. This 
is also the cause for the increase in the tuition discount. With an increase in tuition rates, the modest 
increase in tuition revenue is due to a decrease in full-time enrollment for fiscal year 2018 . 

Grants and Contracts 

Grants and contracts include all restricted revenues made available by government agencies as well as 
private agencies. Grant revenues are recorded only to the extent that the funds have been expended for 
exchange transactions. Non-exchange revenues are recorded when received or when eligibility criteria 
have been met. 

The following table details the College's grant and contract awards for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2018 and June 30, 2017. 

Federal Sources 
State Sources 
Other Sources 

Total All Sources 

June 30, 2018 
$ 20,324,055 

4,829,004 
273,778 

$ 25,426,837 
= 

June 30, 2017 
$ 21,068,809 

4,801,102 
432,842 

$ 26,302,753 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ (744,754) 
27,902 

(159,064) 

$ (875,916) 

The federal sources decrease is consistent with the decrease in the College' s full-time enrollment for the 
current fiscal year. 

Sales and Services from Educational Activities 

Sales and services from educational activities that totaled $162,557 for the 2018 fiscal year as compared 
to $153,588 for the 2017 fiscal year. 

Sales and Service from Auxiliary Enterprises, Net 

Sales and services from auxiliary, net, consist of various enterprise entities that exist predominantly to 
furnish good and services to student , faculty, staff, or the general public and charge a fee directly related 
to the cost of those goods or services. They are intended to be self-supporting. 

Auxiliary enterprises primarily include the Northwest Bookstore, student housing, and food services. 
Auxiliary enterprises revenue, net of scholarship allowances, totaled $3,725,551 for the 2018 fiscal year 
as compared to $4,054,816 for the 2017 fiscal year. The discount for scholarship allowance was 
$4,506,348 for fiscal year 2018 and $4,472,456 for fiscal year 2017. 

Other opet·ating revenues 

Other operating revenues consist of income from various activities and miscellaneous sources. These 
revenues that totaled $503,956 for the 2018 fiscal year as compared to $479,366 for the 2017 fiscal year. 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Operating Expense 

Operating expense for fi cal year 2018 totaled $76,522 563 including alaries and benefit of 
$36,069,278, OPEB expen e of $ 195,992, pension expense of $9,457,682 c ho lar hip of $5,8 14,218. 
utilities of $1,8 18,989 commodities/supplie of$ 405,009, c ntractual ervices f $9,735,280 travel of 
$452,676, depreciation and amortization of $3,796 891 , and other operating expense of $776,548. 
Operating expenses for fiscal year 2017 totaled $78,920,429 including salaries and benefits of 
$36,881,556, pension expense of $9,866,361, scholarships of $7,132,822, utilities of $1,541,680, 
commodities/supplies of $8,492,373, contractual services of $10,007,771, travel of $581,952, depreciation 
and amortization of $3,565,025, and other operating expense of $850,889. 

Expenses by Function: 
Increase 

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 (Decrease) 

Instruction $ 25,538,086 $ 25,660,896 $ (122,810) 
Academic Support 1,149,338 1,285,184 (135,846) 
Student Services 5,430,119 5,651,335 (221,216) 
Institutional Support 6,539,746 6,680,299 (140,553) 
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 12,572,626 13,003,020 (430,394) 
Student Financial Aid 4,836,629 6,155,667 (1,319,038) 
Auxiliary Enterprises 7,005,454 7,052,642 (47,188) 
OPEB Expense 195,992 195,992 
Pension Expense 9,457,682 9,866,361 (408,679) 
Depreciation and amortization 3,796,891 3,565,025 231,866 

Total Operating Expenses by Function $ 76,522,563 $ 78,920,429 $ (2,397,866) 

The decrease in operating expenses is due to the decrease in the College's share of State appropriation of 
over $1.3 million from the previou fiscal year. With this decrease of State appropriations being 
anticipated, operating budget were decrea ed for the fiscal year 2018. 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

State Appropriation 

The College largest ·ource of n n-operating revenue is the tate of Mi i ippi appropriati ns . The e 
appropriations were for educational and general operaLions of the College. Th College received 
$2 1 012,499 for Fi cal year 20 18 compared to $22,344 314 for fi cal year 20 17. Thi de rea e is a result 
of decrea ed full-time enrollment. 

LocnJ Appropriation 

The C liege al o receive non-operating revenue of county appropriations from the eleven-county district 
in which the college reside . The College u es the education and genera l portion of the appropriation for 
salaries, benefits, and 0U1er operational purposes. The College receives the appr priation in monthly 
paym nt , beginning in July of each year. The College received $5,775,085 in county appropriation for 
fisca l year 2018, compared t $5 625,780 for fiscal year 2017. 

lntere t Income, Net 

Interest income includes the amount earned on cash in the bank accounts and from certificates of deposit. 
The interest income for fiscal year 2018 was $116 494, as compared to $64,735 for fiscal year 2017. 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Interest Expense on Capital Related Debt 

Interest expense on capital asset related debt consists of the amount the College incurred during the 2018 
fiscal year. The total expense was $3,500 for fiscal year 2018, compared to $11,775 for fiscal year 2017. 

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, and Lo es 

State Appropriation Re tricted for Capital Purposes 

State appropriations restri ted for capital purpo es consist of con truction and renovation expenditures 
made by the tate Bureau of Buildings and Real Property Management on behalf of d1e College. The 
expenditur were from the late f Mis:i · ippi and were to con truct, renovate, or repair capital as ets. 
Total amount expended on behalf or the College during the fi ca l year 2018 wa $860,340, as compared 
to $3 615 108 for Ii cal year 20 17. Thi decrea e i du to dle completion of a Bureau of Building 
project, Allied Health Building, during the fiscal year 2018. 

Local Appropriations for Capital Purpo es 

The College receives non-operating revenue of county appropriations from the eleven county district in 
which the college resides. The College uses the improvement portion of the appropriations to repair, 
maimain and improve campus facilitie ; and any debt service portion of appropriations for the payment of 
debt principal and interest. The College received $5 ,888,890 in local appropriations for cap·ital purpo es 
for fiscal year 2018, compared to $5,712,475 for fiscal year 2017. 

Capital Grants and Gifts 

Capital grants and gifts include revenue received from outside agencies restricted for capital projects 
during the fiscal year and the value of capital assets donated to the college. The amount of this grant 
totaled $165,007 for fi cal year 2018 as compared to $124,210 for fiscal year 2017. Capital grants consist 
of reimbursed career-technical equipment purchases. 

Other Additions (Deletions), net 

Other additions and deletions, net consist of amounts not reported elsewhere on dle statements. Included 
in this amount are gain/(loss) on disposal of capital assets, increase/(decrease) in value of livestock 
inventory, as well as other miscellaneous non-operating revenues and (expenses). The total amount for 
Ci cal year 2018 was ($132,345) compared to ($26 943) for fi ca l year 2017. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Another way to assess the financial health of the College is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows. Its 
primary purpose is to provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the 
College during a period. 

The Statement of Cash Flows also helps the user to assess the College's: 

• Ability to generate future cash flows, 
• Ability to meet obligations as they come due, and 
• Need for external financing. 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Condeused Statement of Cash Flow (Direct Method) 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 : 

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 
Cash and Cash Equivalents Provided (Used) by: 

Operating Activities $ (28,279,996) $ (29,088,455) 
Noncapital Financing Activities 26,800,178 28,142,879 
Capital and Related Financing Activities 4,500,758 (89,384) 
Investing Activities 116.494 64,735 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,137,434 (970,225) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 14 843,757 15,813,982 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 17,981,191 $ 14,843,757 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 808,459 
(1,342, 70 I) 
4,590,142 

51,759 

4,107,659 
(970,225) 

$ 3,137,434 

The major ources of fund included in operating activities for fiscal year 2018 include student tuition and 
fees, $4,193 585; auxiliary enterpri ·es, $3 ,765,651; and grants and contracts, $25,153,489. The maj r 
uses of funds for fiscal year 2018 were payments made to employees and benefit providers, $39,733,585; 
payments made to suppliers, $18,553,602; and for scholarships, $1,712,544. 

In comparison, the major sources of funds included in operating activities for fiscal year 2017 include 
student tuition and fees, $5,090,309; auxiliary enterprises, $4,076,376; and grants and contracts, 
$27,105,754. The major uses of funds for fiscal year 2017 were payments made to employees and benefit 
providers, $41,708,062; payments made to suppliers, $18,665,690; and for scholarships, $3,848,718. 

The largest inflow of cash in the noncapital financing activities group is the State of Mississippi 
appropriation of $21,029,976 in fiscal year 2018, as compared to $22,511,478 in fiscal year 2017. 

Significant Capital Asset Transaction 

During fiscal year 2018, significant completion to several construction projects took place at the College. 
In fiscal year 2017, six construction projects were in progress at year-end with four of those projects 
considered capital project additions . In fiscal year 2018, all four of the capital projects were completed 
with $11,152,318 being added to the depreciation schedules and accounted for accordingly. 

Significant Subsequent Events 

The College has approved a contract for site repairs at the Lafayette Yalobusha Technical Center in the 
amount of $322,520. There are also projects that are in design phases with architects for future 
renovations and new construction. These projects have not been formally bid, so no funds are obligated at 
this time. 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Financial Implications of GASB Pronouncements 

The College implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015, and GASB 75 in fiscal year 2018. The objectives 
of these GASB Statements are to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local 
governmental entities related to pensions and OPEB . The implications of these new pronouncements 
di tort the College's true activity and financial position; therefore, the following tatement eliminate the 
impact of these GASB Statements to provide a more u eful report on the College's operations and net 
position. Depreciation is also removed, as this expense is non-budgeted and non-cash. 

GASB 68 and 75 Impact on Net Position 

Total Net Position 

Deferred Outflows of Resource- Pension 

Deferred Outflows of Resource- OPEB 

Deferred Inflows of Resource- Pensions 

Deferred Inflows of Resource- OPEB 

Net Pension Liability 

Net OPEB Liability 

Total Impact on GASB 68 and 75 

Net Position net of GASB 68 and 75 

Less Net Investments in Capital Assets 

Less Restricted Net Postion 

Unrestricted Net of GASB 68 and 75 

June 30, 2018 

$ 33,925,831 

(15,524,342) 

(217,147) 

9,559,158 

190,722 

79,626,057 

3,745,544 

77,379,992 

111 ,305,823 

(91,669,631) 

(7,515,297) 

$ 12120,895 

12 

Restated 
June 30, 2017 

$ 41,839,180 

(21,522,015) 

5,710,993 

84,775,411 

68,964,389 

110,803,569 

(93,052,080) 

(7,651,828) 

$ l0,099 661 

$ 

$ 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

(7,913,349) 

5,997,673 

(217,147) 

3,848,165 

190,722 

(5,149,354) 

3,745,544 

8,415,603 

502,254 

1,382,449 

136,531 

2,021,234 



NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

GASB 68, GASB 75, and Other Non-cash 
Items Impact on Change in Net Position 

Change in Net Position 

GASB 68 Impact 

GASB 75 Impact 

Depreciation 

Change in Net Postion after GASB 68, 
GASB 75, and Other Non-cash Items 

Change in Net Position- Operation 

Change in Net Position- Plant 

Facto1·s Impacting Future Periods 

June 30, 2018 

$ (4,230,544) 

4,696,484 

36,314 

3,796 891 

$ 4,299,145 

2,022,195 

2,276,950 

Restated 
June 30, 2017 

$ (489,836) 

5,028,466 

3,565,025 

$ 8,103,655 

255,856 

7,847,799 

Increase 
(Decren e) 

$ (3,740,708) 

(331,982) 

36,314 

23 1,866 

$ (3,804,510) 

1,766,339 

(5,570,849) 

There are a number of i sue that are directly impacting the community college system as a whole. The 
sluggish economy at the .local, state, and nalional l.evel, the uncertainty in the level of State appropriations, 
the pressure to provide increases in employee compensation in order to retain and attract quality faculty 
and staff, and increases in retirement contributions, insurance and energy cost impact the College's ability 
to expand programs, undertake new initiatives, and meet its core mission and ongoing operational needs, 
while minimizing increases in student tuition and fees . State appropriations continue to be the single 
largest ource of revenue for the College and, therefore, one of the key factors influencing the College's 
financial condition. 

In addition to these operational challenges, deferred maintenance and repairs, new technology, and new 
construction projects in order to adapt to industry standards and expectati ns are Iarg challenge fa ing 
the College in Lhe years to come. Th College continues to assess its performance toward idenlified goal 
and seek ways to achieve greater efficiencies and reduce expenditures in an effort to assist in meeting the 
future challenges. 

The College is also accredited through the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on 
Colleges ("SACSCOC"). Continued accreditation is the backbone for a higher education institution like 
the College in order to assure th educational quality and improve effe tiveness of the in titution. The 
College' accreditation was reaffirmed by SACSCO in June 20 17. The nex.t decision on reaffirmation of 
accreditation through the SACSCOC is scheduled for June of 2027. 

Northwest Missis. ippi Community College is fortunate to have strong support from the local community 
through th foundation, individuals, and businesse , as well as the eleven county district. This support has 
been extremely helpful in providing our students with additional opportunities to further their educational 
goals and our ability to meet those goals. 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Statement of Net Position 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivables, net 
Inventories 
Long-term receivable, current portion 
Prepaid expenses 

Total Current Assets 

Non-current Assets 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Long-term receivable 

June 30, 2018 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Total Non-current Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
OPEB 
Pensions 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Net OPEB liability, current portion 
Other current liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 
Deposits refundable 
Net OPEB liability 
Net pens ion liability 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
OPEB 
Pensions 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net investirent in capital assets 
Restricted for 

Unemployn:cnt compensation 
Capital projects 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ 

$ 

10,810,808 
3,187,177 

701,040 

100,000 
649,529 

15,448,554 

7,170,383 

700,000 
91,669,631 

99,540,014 

114,988,568 

217,147 
15,524,342 

15,741,489 

3,094,605 

386,300 
159,678 
68,414 

3,708,997 

133,426 

3,585,866 
79,626,057 

83,345,349 

87,054,346 

190,722 
9,559,158 

9,749,880 

91,669,631 

117,237 
7,398,060 

(65,259,097) 

33,925,831 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
Statement of Financial Position 

Assets 
Current As sets: 

Cash 
Promises to give, net 
Investirents 

December 31, 2017 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets: 
Cash-restricted 
Inv es tirents-restricted 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Pennanently restricted 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

$ 12,544 
50,000 

872,675 

935,219 

389,829 
9,945,218 

10,335,047 

$ 11,270,266 

$ 19,172 

37,902 
2,856,170 
8,357,022 

11,251,094 

$ 11,270,266 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Operating Revenues 
Tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $11,921,004) 
Federal grants and contracts 
State grants and contracts 
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 
Sales and services of educational departments 
Auxiliary enterprises : 

Bookstore (net of scholars hip allowances of$2,674,761) 
Food Services (net of scholarship allowances of$1,075,377) 
Student housing (net of scholarship allowances of $756,210) 
Other Auxiliary revenues 

Other operating revenues 
Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Fringe benefits 
OPEB Expense 
Pension expense 
Travel 
Contractual services 
Utilities 
Scholarships and fellowships 
Commodities 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Other operating expenses 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 
State Appropriations 
Local Appropriations 
Insurance loss recoveries 
Interest income 
Interest expense on capital asset-related debt 

Net Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains and Losses 

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, and Losses 
State appropriations restricted for capital purposes 
Local appropriations restricted for capital purposes 
Capital grants and contracts - federal 
Other additions (deletions), net 

Net Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, and Losses 

Changes in Net Position 

Net Position. Beginning, as previously reported 
Prior Period Adjustment 

Net Position - Beginning, as restated 

$ 8,744,260 
20,324,055 
4,829,004 

273,778 
162,557 

2,289,943 
788,808 
576,780 
70,020 

503,956 
38,563,161 

31,221 ,613 
4,847,665 

]95,992 
9,457,682 

452,676 
9,735,280 
1,818,989 
5,814,218 
8,405,009 
3,796,891 

776,548 
76,522,563 

(37,959,402) 

21 ,012,499 
5,775,085 

46,388 
116,494 

(3,500) 
26,946,966 

( 11,012,436) 

860,340 
5,888,890 

165,007 
(132,345) 

6,781,892 

(4,230,544) 

40,939,180 
(2,782,805) 

38,156,375 

Net Position - End of year $ 33,925,831 
=========== 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Unrestricted Net Assets 
Unrestricted Revenues and Gains 

Contributions 
In-kind donations 
Interest income 

Total Unrestricted Revenues and Gains 

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 

Total Unrestricted Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 

Expenses 
Like kind payroll expense 
Like kind education related expense 
Other related expenses 

Total Expenses 

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 
Contributions 
Interest & dividends (net of management fees) 
Fundraisers (net) 

Net unrealiz.ed gain (loss) on investments 
Education related activities 
Scholarships 

Transfers from temporarily restricted 

Increase (Decrease) in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets 
Endowment Contributions 

Trans fer from temporarily restricted assets (net) 

Increase (Decrease) in Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

Increase (Decrease) in Total Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

$ 

$ 

9,494 
338,291 

2,040 
349,825 

4,283 

354,108 

253,103 
85,188 
22,703 

360,994 

(6,886) 

254,778 
232,531 
32,970 

877,377 
(133,716) 
(406,367) 
(96,751) 

760,822 

648,745 
92,467 

741,212 

1,495,148 

9,755,946 

11,251,094 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Cash Flom; from Operating Acthities 
Tuition and fees 

Grants and contracts 

Sales and services of educational departments 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees for salaries and benefits 
Payments for utilities 

Payments for scholat hip. and fellowships 

A uxiliaty enterwise charges: 
Bookstore 

Food services 

Student housing 

Other 

Other receipts (payments) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flom; from Noncapital Financing Activities 
State appropriations 

Local appropriations 

Agency transfers (net) 

Custodial transfers (net) 

Federal loan receipts 

Federal loan disbursements 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flom; from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Cash received on long-term receivable 
Cash paid for capital assets 

Capital appropriations received 

Capital grants and contracts received 

Principal paid on capital debt 

Capital debt interest paid 

Other sources (uses) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Imes ting Activities 
Interest received on investments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Imes ting Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of the Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ehdofthe Year 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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$ 

$ 

4,193,585 
25,153,489 

162,557 
(18,553,602) 
(39,733,585) 
(1,818,989) 
(1,712,544) 

2,289,943 
788,808 
616,880 
70,020 

263,442 
(28,279,996) 

21,029,976 
5,761,101 

8,877 
224 

6,208,945 
(6,208.945) 
26,800.178 

100,000 
(1,266,447) 
5,880,010 

165,007 
(420,000) 

(4,200) 
46,388 

4,500,758 

116,494 
116,494 

3,137,434 

14,843,757 

17,981,191 

continued 



NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating incorre (loss) 

Adjustrrents to reconcile net incorre (loss) to net cash 
provide (used) by operating activities 

Depreciation and amortiz.ation expense 
Changes in assets and liabilities 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Receivables , net 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Defened outflows 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Unearned revenues 
Deposits refundable 
Defened inflows 
Net OPEB liability 
Net pension liability 

Total adjustrrents 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Operating, Capital, and Financing Activities 
Tuition and fees 
Institutional payrrents for scholarships and fellowships 
Payrrents by State on construction 

Total Non-cash Operating, Capital, and Financing Activities 

Cash and Cash F.quiv.tlents 

Cash and cash equivalents classified as current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents classified as non-current assets 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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$ (37,959,402) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

3,796,891 

(292,480) 
203,099 
226,277 

5,927,903 

872,631 
123,965 

16,225 
4,038,887 

(84,638) 
(5,149,354) 
9,679,406 

(28,279,996) 

4,101,674 
(4,101,674) 

860,340 

860,340 

10,810,808 
7,170,383 

17,981,191 

concluded 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments 
Interest and dividends restricted for reinvestment 
Interest and dividends not restricted 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets 

Promises to give 
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 

Accounts payable 
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Investments sold 
lnves tments purchased 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash F.quivalents 

Current Cash and Cash F.qui val en ts - Beginning 

Current Cash and Cash F.quivalents - Fnding 

The Foundation paid no income tax or interest during 2017 

$ 1,495,148 

(877,377) 
(232,531) 

(2,040) 

42,315 

4,709 
(150,014) 

280,210 

80,000 
(370,030) 

(290,030) 

(9,820) 

22,364 

$ 12,544 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 

A. Nature of Operations - Northwest Mississippi Community College (the "College') is a 
comprehen. ive two-year community and technical college. The College provides the students of 
its eleven county district and beyond wi1h the opportunity to obtain an affordable quality 
education through academic and career tech nical curricula leading to certificates, diplomas, or 
associates degrees. 

B. Reporting Enlity - Th C Jlege was founded in t928 and is one of Mi sis ippi ' 15 public 
community co l leg~. The College operate at four campu es: the main campu in enatobia, 
Mi sissippi, De Oto Center at Southwen and Olive Branch ML i ippi, and Lafayette-Yalobusha 
Technical Center al Oxford, Mi is ippi . Tbe legal authority for the establi hment of Northwest 
Missi sippi Community College is found in ection 37-29-31, Miss. Code Ann. (1972) . 

The College is governed by a twenty-two member board of trustees, selected by the board of 
supervi ors of Bent n, Calhoun, D oto, Lafayette, Marshall , Panola, Quitman, Tallahatchie, Tate, 
Tunica and Yalobusha Countie who support the district through locally assessed ad valorem tax 
millage. One of the trustee from each of the supporting counties must be the county 
superintendent of edu ation, unless the superintendent choo not to serve, in which case, the 
county board of supervisors hall fill the vacancy in accordance with Section 37-29-65, Miss. 
Code Ann. (1972). Each board member is appointed for a 5-year term. ln addition, the College 
work jointly with the Mi si ippi Community College Board, which coordinates the efforts of all 
15 community and junior co ll ege. as they serve the taxpayers of the State of Mississippi. 

Northwest Mississippi Community College reports the following discretely presented component 
unit: 

Northwest Mi sissippi Community College Foundation (the "Foundation") - The Foundation 
is a non-profit organization founded in l 975 and l.ocated on the Northwest Mississ ippi 
Community C Hege campus. Its purpo e i t rai e fwid to a i t the college perform it 
mi ion and to provide cho larships for qualifying tudenl f the College. The oundation 
rai es funds primarily by seeking donations and sponsoring fund-raising events. 

Alth ugh the College does not control tbe timing or amount of receipts from the ·oundation, 
the majority of re ources and the income thereon that the Foundation holds and invests are 
restricted to the activities of the College by the donors. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Foundation provided $374,151 to the College in the 
form of scholar. hips to student . Significant note disclosures applicable to the Foundation's 
financial statements are presented at the end of the College's Notes to the Financial 
Statements. Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from: 4975 
Highway 51 North- Senatobia, MS 38668. 

C. Basis of Presentation - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
accom1ting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"), including Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Stace,nents - and Managemem's Discussion and Analysis - for Stme and Local 
Governments, and Statement No. 35, Basic Fincmcial Staiemems and Management's Discussion 
and Analysis of Public College and Universities, issued June and November, 1999, respectively. 
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D. Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the College have been prepared on the accrual 
basis whereby all revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they 
have been reduced to a legal or contractual obligation to pay. 

The College prepares its financial statements as a business-type activity in conformity with 
appli able pronouncements of GA B. The College has the option to apply any other accounting 
literature unless the literature conflict with or contradicts a GASB pronouncement. 

E. Ca h and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the College consider 
all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be ca h 
equivalent . 

F. Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable consist of tuition and fees charged to students, state 
appropriations, amounts due from state and federal grants and contracts, local governments, and 
credits due to the College from vendors. Accounts receivables are recorded net of an allowance 
for doubtful accounts. 

G. Invent rie - Inventories consist of book , supplies, and dry goods in the bookstore. These 
inven.tori s are generally valued at the l wer of cost or market, on either the fir t-in, first-out 
("FIFO") basis or the average cost basis . 

H. Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses include insurance premiums paid during the current fiscal 
year which are applicable to the succeeding fiscal year(s). 

I. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents that are externally restricted to 
ma.ke debt servi e payments, maintain sinking or reserve funds, or to purcha e or construct capital 
or other non-current as e , are eta ified as restricted cash and cash equivalents on the Statement 
of Net Position. When both restricted and nonrestricted assets are available for use, the policy is to 
use restricted assets first. 

J. Long-term Receivable - ong-term receivable consists of the agreement with Mar hall County to 
pay the College $ 1,000,000 of ba k taxe. over a period of ten year . These payment are in equal 
annual installment of $100,000 and split equally between the College'. General and Unexpended 
Plant funds. 

K. Capital As et , Net of A cumulat d Depreciation - Capital assets are recorded at cost on the date 
of acquisition or, if donated at fair value at Lhe date of donation. Renovations to buildings and 
improvement other than buildings that s ignificantly increa e Lhe value or extend th u eful life of 
the tructure are capitalized. Routine repair. and maintenance cost ru·e charged to operating 
expeo e in the year in whicb the expen. e wa incurred. D preciation is computed using the 
traight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset and is not allocated to the functional 

expenditure categories. See Note 7 for additional details concerning useful lives, salvage values, 
and capitalization thre holds. Expenditures for con truction in progre are capitalized as 
incurred. [ntere t expense relating to con t:ruction is capitalized net of intere t income earned on 
resources set aside for this purpose. 

L. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources - In addition to assets, the statement of financial position 
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources . This separate financial 
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) 
until then. Deferred outflows for the college are future pension related as well as OPEB related. 
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In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial po 1t1on will ·omelim report a separat 
secti n for defe1Ted inflows of re. urce . Thi eparate financial tatement element deferred 
intlow · of resources represents a acquisition of net po ition that applies to a future period(s) and 
o will not be recognized as an inflow of re urces (revenue) until that Lime. Deferred inflows for 

the college are future pension related as well as OPEB related. 

See Note 13 and 14 for further details. 

M. Long-term Liabilities and Bond Discounts and Bond Premiums - Bond discounts and bond 
premiums are being amortized over the remaining life of the issued bonds using the straight-line 
method. 

N. Unearned Revenues - Unearned revenues include amounts received for tmtJon and fees and 
certain auxiliary activities prior to the end of the fiscal year, but are related to the subsequent 
accounting period. Unearned revenues also include amounts received from grant and contract 
sponsors that have not yet been earned. 

0. Campen ated Absences - The College B ard of Trustees leave policy provides for personal and 
sick leave for all nine, ten, and twelve-month employees. The College's policy does not provide 
for payment of accumulated leave beyond the current fiscal year. Therefore, no accrual for 
compensated absences has been recorded in the financial statements. 

P. Non-current Liabilities - Non-current liabilities include principal amounts of bonds payable that 
will not be paid in the next fiscal year, dormitory housing deposits, and the bond discounts and 
bond premiums are being amortized over the remaining life of the issued bonds. 

Q. Pen ions - For purposes of mea uring Lhe net pension liability deferred outflows of re ourc and 
deferred inflow. of resow·ce related to pen ions and pen ion expense, information about the 
fiduciary net po ition of Lh Public Employee ' Retirement System ("PERS") and addition 
to/deduction from PER ' fiduciary net position bave been determined on the same basis a they 
are reported by PERS. For this purpose, the benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

R. Postemployment Benefit Other than Pen -ions (OPEB) - For purposes of mea uring the net OP B 
liability, deferred outflows of re ources and deferred inflows of re ources related to OPEB, and 
OPEB expen e, informalion about the fiduciary net position of the State and School Employee 
Life and Health Plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan' , fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. 
Fiduciary net position was zero as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017. For this purpose, the 
OPEB Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. 

S. Classification of Revenues - The College has classified its revenues as either operating or non­
operating revenues according to the following criteria: 

Operating Revenues: Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of 
exchange transactions, such as (1) student tuition, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, (2) 
sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, and (3) 
most federal, state, and local grants and contracts. Gifts (pledges) that are received on an 
installment basis are recorded at net present value. 
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on-operating Revenue : Non-operating 1·evenue in lude a tivitie that have the characteristics 
of n n-exchange transactions, uch a gifts and contribution , and otber revenue ource that are 
defined a non-operating revenu by GASB StatemenL No. 9 Reporting ash Flows of 
Proprieta,y and Nonexpendable Trust F1111d and Gover11me11tal Entities that Use Proprietary 
Fund Accounting and GASB Statement No. 34, such as state appropriations, local appropriations, 
and investment income. 

T. Tax Revenues (Local Appropriations) - The College receives ad valorem taxes from each county 
in its el ven county district. Each county assesses a tax millage in support of the College as 
required by state law. 

U. State Appropriations - The College receives funds from the State of Mississippi through the 
Mississippi Community College Board. The appropriations are distributed based on a full-time 
equivalent funding formula whi h is based on total credit hours generated by all students with 
special consideration given only to high cost programs. Currently, the first 15% of the 
appropriations are split equally among the coll · ges, and the remaining 85% of the appropriations 
are allocated ba ed on tht; college full-time equivalency. 

V. Scholarship Discounts and Allowances - Financial aid to students is reported in the financial 
statements according to GASB guidance and under the alternative method as prescribed by the 
National Associati n of College a11d University Business Officers ( 'NACUBO ). Certain aid , 
such a loans, funds provided to students a awarded by third partie and Fed ral Direct Lending, 
is accounted for as a third party payment (credited to the student' account as if the student mad 
the payment). All other aid is reflected in the financial statements as operating expenses, or 
scholarship allowances, which reduce revenues. The amount reported as operating expenses 
repre ent the portion of aid that w i provided LO the student in the form of cash. Scholarship 
allowances represent the portion f aid provided to the student in the form of reduced tuition. 
Under the alt rnative meth d, th e amount are computed on a college basis by allocating the 
cash payments to studenlS, excluding payments for services, on the ratio of total aid to the aid not 
considered to be third party aid. 

W. Net Position - GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, reports equity as "Net Position" rather than 
"Fund Balance". Net Position is classified in three categories: 

a. Net investment in capital assets is the portion of net position that consists of capital assets 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of boITowings 
used to finance the purchase or construction of those as et . 

, b. Restricted expendable net position is noncapital assets that must be used for a particular 
purpose as specified by creditors, grantors, or donors. 

c. Unre tricted net po ilion is the remaining net position less remaining noncapital liabilities 
which are not restricted - expendable. 

The unrestricted net position balance of ($65,259,097) at June 30, 2018, includes $701,040 
reserved for inventories and a remaining amount of ($65,960,137). 

X. Inc me Taxes - The college is recognized a local governing authority and is excluded by the 
internal Revenue Service from federal income taxation. 

Y. Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to use 
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

24 



NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments - Investment policies as set forth by policy and state statute 
authorize the c llege to inve t in demand deposits and interest-bearing time deposits such as savings accounts, 
certificates of depo it, m ney market funds, U.S. Treasury bills and notes, and repurchase agreements. 

The collateral fi r public entilie depo iLc; in financial in tilution i held in the name of the State Treasurer 
under a pr gram estab li.hed by the Mi si-sippi tate Legi lature and i governed by Se lion 27-105-5 , Miss. 
Code Ann. ( l 972). Under thi program the College fund are protected thr ugh a collateral pool 
admi ni tered by the Stat Trea urer. Financial in titutions holding depo it of public fund must pledite 
ecurities a · co llateral again t the e deposits. In the event of fai lure of a financial in titution ecurit.ies pledged 

by that in titution wou ld be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the 
Federal Dep it In urance C0rporation. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that, in the event of a financial 
in titutions fai lure., the college s deposits may not be returned to it. The College does not have a formal depo it 
policy for cu todial credit ri k. As of June 30, 2018, none of the college's bank balance of $19,531,407 wa 
exposed to custodial credit risk. 

3. Accounts Receivable. 

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2018: 

Student tuition 

Federal, state, and private grants and contracts 
State appropriations 
Local appropriations 

Other 

Total Accounts Receivable 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

Net Accounts Receivable 

$ 

$ 

7,021,598 
2,415,119 

223,743 
279,519 

62,198 

10,002,177 
(6,815,000) 

3,187,177 

All accounts receivable reported are considered current assets of the college. 

4. Long-term Receivable. 

Long-term receivable as of June 30, 2018 consists of the following: 

Current portion 

Non-current portion 

Total Notes Receivable 

$ 

$ 

25 

100,000 
700,000 

800,000 



5. 

6. 

7. 
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Inventory. 

Inventory as of June 30, 2018 consists of the following: 

Bookstore $ 701,040 

Total Inventory $ 701,040 

Prepaid Expenses. 

Prepaid expense as of June 30, 2018 consists of the following: 

Insurance and bonds $ 649,529 

Total Prepaid Expenses $ 649,529 

Capital Assets. 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018, is presented as follows: 

Beginning Completed Ending 
Balance Construction/ Balance 

July l, 2017 Additions Di eo ·ition Adjustments June 30, 2018 
Nondepreciable Capital Assets : 

Land $ 6,714,072 $ 25,000 $ $ $ 6,739,072 
Construction in progress 10,527,514 654,574 (11 ,152,318) 29,770 
Livestock 120,600 19,446 [8,546 121,500 

Total Nondepreciable Capital Assets 17,362,186 699,020 18,546 (11,152,318) 6,890,342 

Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Improvements other than buildings 15,456,547 673,925 16,130,472 
Buildings %,169,713 55,413 437,957 10,478,393 106,265,562 
Equipment 13,317,893 1,288,732 227,225 14,379,400 
Library books 2,381,798 103,068 69,644 2,415,222 

Total Depreciable Capital Assets 127,325,951 1,447,213 734,826 11,152,318 139,190,656 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Improvements other than buildings 5,843,864 570,750 6,414,614 
Buildings 33,544,654 1,868,706 325,670 35,087,690 
Equipment 10,040,185 1,225,330 206,267 l l,059,248 
Library books 1,785,414 134,045 69,644 1,849,815 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 51.214,117 3 798,831 601 ,581 54,411,367 

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 76,111,834 (2,351,618) 133,245 11,152,318 84,779,289 

Capital Assets, Net $ 93,474,020 $ (1 ,652,598) $ 151791 $ $ 91 ,669,631 

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis with the exception of library books category, which is 
computed using a composite method. The following useful lives, salvage values, and capitalization thresholds 
are used to compute depreciation. 
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Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Equipment 

Library books 

8. Construction Commitments and Financing. 

Useful Lives 

40 years 

20 years 

3-15 years 

10 years 

Salvage 

Value 

20% 

20% 

1-10% 
0% 

Cap italiz.atio n 

Threshold 

50,000 

25,000 

5,000 

The College has contracted for various construction projects as of June 30, 2018. Estimated cost to complete 
the various projects and the sources of anticipated funding are presented below: 

Project Title 
Oxford Campus Entrance and Signage 
HVAC Controls 
Thompson Street Repairs 

Totals 

9. Operating Lease 

Funded by 
NWCC 
NWCC 
NWCC 

State Sources 
$ 

$ 

Other 
$ 27,402 

891,465 
468,966 

$ 1,387,833 

The University of Mississippi entered into a 5-year operating lease with the College during the 2018 fiscal year 
in order to occupy a portion of the College's DeSoto Center location. The College received $275,000 in lease 
revenue from the University of Mississippi for the year ended June 30, 2018. Future lease receipts are as 
follows: 

Years Ending 

June 30 

Totals 

2019 

2020 

2021 

Aroount 

300,000 

325,000 

350,000 

$ 975,000 

10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities. 

A counts payable and accrued liabilities con i t of the f, ll owing at June 30, 2018. All accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities are considered current liabilities of the college. 

Employee salary and benefits 
Payments to suppliers and contractors 
Student payables 

Total Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

27 

$ 

$ 

2,447,193 
636,413 

10,999 

3,094,605 



11. Unearned Revenue 
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Unearned revenue consists of the following at June 30, 2018: 

Sumrrer II tuition and fees 
Sumrrer II room and board 

Total Unearned Revenue 

12. Long-term Liabilities. 

$ 

$ 

340,400 
45,900 

386,300 

Long-term liabilities of the College consist of bonds payable and refundable student dormitory housing deposits that are expected to be Iiquidaled at least one 
year from June 30, 2018. Bond premiums, discounrs , and deferred loss on bond refunding are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. 

Information regarding original issue amounts, interesl rates, and maturity dates for bonds and notes included in the long-term liabilities balance at June 30, 2018, 
is listed in the following schedule. A schedule detailing the annual requirements necessary to amortize the outstanding debt is also provided, if applicable. 

Description and Pu!£ose 

Bonded Debt 

F.ducational Facilities Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2012 

Total Bonded Debt 

Other Long-term liabilities 

Deposits refundable 
Discount on bond refunding 
Premium on bond refunding 

Total Other Long-term liabilities 

Total 

Original 
Issue 

Annual 
Interest 

Rate 

1,935,000 2.50% - 2.00% 

Maturity 

2018 $ 

$ 

28 

Balance 
July 1, 2017 

420,000 

420,000 

117,201 
(3,870) 
13,554 

126,885 

546,885 

Additions Deletions 

$ $ 420,000 

420,000 

ll9,539 103,314 
(3,870) 

- 13,554 
ll9,539 112.998 

$ 119,539 $ 532,998 

Balance 
June 30, 2018 

$ 

133,426 

133,426 

$ 133,426 

Due Within 
One Year 

$ 

$ 
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13. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description. The College contJibutes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mi I s1ppi 
(PERS), a co, t- haring multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and 
di ability benefits annual co t-of-living adju tment , and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 
Plan provi i ns and the Board of Trustee authority to determine contribution rate ar established by Miss. 
Code Ann. Section 25- L 1-1 t eq. ( 1972, a amended) and may be amended only by the Mis i ippi 
Legislature. PER i ue a publicly available financial report that includes financial tatement and required 
supplementary information. Thar report may be btained by writing to Public Employees' Retirement Sy tern 
ofMissis ippi, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, M 39201 or by calling (60J) 359-3589 or 1-
800-444-PER . 

Benefits provided. Member hip LO PERS i a condi.tion of employmenl granted upoh hiring for qualifying 
employees and official of the tale of Mi ·i-, ippi state univer ities, community and junior college , and 
teachers and empl yees of the public Colleges. For those per ons employed by political ubdivi ions and 
in trumentalitie f lhe tate of Mi issippi membership is contingent upon approval of the entity ' 
participation in P R by th PERS B ard f Trustee . If approved member hip for lbe entity' employee 
i a condition of employment and eligibility i granted to tho e who qualify upon hiring. Parti ipating 
members who are ve ted and retire at or after age 60 or those who retir regardle · of age with al lea t 30 
years of creditable ervice (25 years of creditab.le service for employees who became members of PERS 
before July 1, 2011) are entitled, upon application, to an annual retirement allowance payable monthly for life 
in an amount equal to 2.0 percent of their average compensation for each year of creditable service up to and 
including 30 years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July l, 2011), plus 2.5 percent 
for each additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for each year of 
creditable service below 30 years or the number of years in age that the member is below 65, whichever is 
less. Average compensation is the average of the employee's earnings during the four highest compensated 
years of creditable ervice. Benefits vest upon completion of eight years of membership service (four years 
of member hip service for tho. e who became members of PER before July I, 2007). PERS also provides 
certain death and di ability benefit . A Cost-of-Living Adju. tmenL (COLA) payment is made to eligible 
r tiree and beneficiaries. Th COLA i equal to 3.0 percent of the annual retirement allowance for each full 
fi. cal year of retirement up to the year in which the retired member reaches age 60 (55 for those who became 
members of PERS before July 1, 2011), with 3.0 percent compounded for each fiscal year thereafter. Plan 
provi ion are established and may be amended only by the tate of Mis issippi Legislature. 

Contributions. PERS members are required to contribute 9.00% of their annual covered alary, and the 
College i required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer' rate as of June 30, 2018 
was 15.75% of annua.1 covered payroll. The contribution requirements f PERS members and employers are 
established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The College's contributions to 
PERS for the fi ·cal years ending June 30, 2 I , 2017 and 2016 were $4,761,198, $4,838,109, and 
$4,761,501, respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year. 

29 



NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Ac June 30, 2018, the College reported a liability of $79,626.057 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30 
2017. and the total pension liability used to calculate I.be net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The College's proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the College's long-term share of contribution to the pension plan relative to projected contributions of all participating entities. 
actuarially detennined. At June 30, 2017, The College's proportion was 0.4790 percent, which was an increase from the proportionate share at June 30, 2016 of 0.4746 
percent. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the College recognized pension expense of $9,457,682. At June 30, 2018, the College reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources: 

Measurement Amonization Ending Balance Ending Balance 
Period Period June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 

Difference between expected and actual experience 2014 3.78 $ 253,950 $ $ 253,950 $ 
2015 3.72 726,583 422,431 304,152 

2016 3.48 1,398,522 563,921 834,601 

2,379,055 1,240,302 1,138,753 

Changes in proponion and differences between college 

contribution and proponionate share of contributions 2015 3.72 262,398 152,558 109,840 

2017 3.37 742,428 220,305 522,123 

262,398 742,428 372,863 631,963 

Net difference between projected and actual investment 

earnings on pension plan investments 2015 5.00 3,276,407 1,092,135 2,184,272 

2016 5.00 6,699,028 1,674,757 5,024,271 

9,975,435 2,766,892 7,208,543 

Changes of assumptions 2015 3.72 4,067,232 2,364,669 1,702,563 

2017 3.37 115,635 34,313 81,322 

4,067.232 115,635 _ _].,398,982 1.783.885 

College contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2016 3.48 4,837,895 4,837,895 

2017 3.37 4,761,198 4,761,198 

4,837,895 4,761 ,198 4,837,895 4,761,198 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 21,522,015 $ 5,619.261 $ 11,616,934 $ 15.524.342 
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Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Difference between expected and actual experience 

Changes in proportion and differences between college 
contribution and proportionate share of contributions 

Net difference between projected and actual investment 
earnings on pension plan investments 

Changes of assumptions 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 
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Measurement 
Period 

Amortization 
Period 

Ending Balance 
June 30, 2017 Additions 

2017 

2014 
2016 

2014 
2017 

2016 

3.37 

3.78 
3.48 

5.00 
5.00 

3.48 

$ 

$ 

$ 826,160 

293,921 
986,553 

1,280,474 

4,205,244 
7,690,426 

4,205,244 7,690,426 

225,275 

5,710,993 $ 8,516,586 

Deletions 

$ 245,151 

293,921 
397,804 
691,725 

2,102,623 
1,538,085 
3,640,708 

90.837 

$ 4,668,421 

Ending Balance 
June 30, 2018 

$ 581,009 

588,749 
588z249 

2,102,621 
6,152,341 
8,254,962 

134,438 

$ 9,559,158 

$4,761,198 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from College contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction to the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Years Fnding 
June 30 Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Total --

2019 $ 5,701,985 $ (4,374,498) $ 1,327,487 

2020 3,292,192 (2,017,784) 1,274,408 

2021 1,768,967 (1,628,791) 140,176 
2022 (1,538,0852__ (1 ,538,085) 

Totals $ 10,763,144 $ (9,559,158) $ 1,203,986 
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Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

3.0 percent 

3.25 - 18.50 percent, including inflation 

7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment 
expense, including inflation 

Mortality rate were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table projected with Scale BB 
to 2022, with males rates set forward one year. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016. The experience report is dated April 18, 
2017. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pen ion plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
di tribution analy. i in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
nomjnal return net f pen i o plan inve tmen,t e pense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed 
for each major a et cla s. These ranges are C()mbined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rate of relurn by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. 

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 
as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
U.S Broad 
In tern atio nal F.q u ity 
Emerging Markets F.quity 
Global 
Fixed Income 
Real Estate 
Private F.quity 
Emerging Debt 
Cash 

Total 

Target Allocation 
27% 
18% 
4% 

12% 
18% 
10% 
8% 
2% 
1% 

100% 

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

4.60% 
4.50% 
4.75% 
4.75% 
0.75% 
3.50% 
5.10% 
2.25% 
0.00% 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will 
be made at the cunent contribution rate (9.00%) and that employer contributions will be made at the 
current employer contribution rate (15 .75%). Based on tho e assumptions, the pen ion plan's fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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Sen ·itivity of the College ·s proportionate shore of the 11.er pension liability to changes in the discowit 
ra1e. The fol lowing presents the College's prop rtionate hare f the net pen ion liability calculated 
using rhe discount rate of 7.75%, as well a what the Col lege' proportionate ·hare of the net pen ion 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is !-percentage-point lower (6.75%) or 
I-percentage-point higher (8.75%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase 
(6.75%) Rate (7.75%) (8.75%) 

College's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability $ IOM34,890 $ 79,626,057 $ 59,029,335 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued PERS financial report. 

14. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB). 

General Information about the OPEB Plan. 

Plan description. State law mandates that all state, public education, library, junior and community 
college and retiring employees be offered health and life benefit coverage through the State and School 
Employees' Life and Health Insurance Plan (the Plan). The Plan was established by Section 25-15-3 et 
seq., Mississippi Code Ann. (1972), which may be amended only by the State Legislature. The State and 

chool Employees' Health In. urance Management Board (the Board) administer Lhe Plan. The Board 
ha the sol lega l auth rity t p( mulgate rules and regulations governing the operations of the Plan 
within the co nfines of the law governing the Plan. The Plan is self-in med and is fi'nanced through 
premium collected from employers, employees, retirees and COBRA participants. The Plan provid 
for Orher Po. temployment Benefit (OPEB) as a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. A tru t 
was created June 28, 2018 for the OPEB Plan and, while no trust was in place for the June 30, 2017 plan 
year-end, for purposes of comparability for future periods, terminology used herein is based on the plan 
being a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. The plan does not issue a stand­
alone financial report. 

Benefits provided. 

The Plan wa. formed by th Stat Legislature to provide group health and life benefits to full-time active 
and retired employee of the State, agencies universities, community/junior colleges, public school 
di tri t and public librarie . In addition. the spouse and/or children of covered employees and retirees, as 
well as urviving pou ·es and COBRA participants, may be eligible for health insurance coverage under 
Lhe Plan. Benefit of the OPEB Piao consi l of an implicit rate subsidy, which is essentially the difference 
between the average cost of providing health care benefits to retirees under age 65 and the average cost 
of providing health care benefits to a ll participants when premiums paid by retiree. are not age adju ted. 
Empl yees' premiums are funded primarily by their employer . Retirees must pay their own premiums, 
as do active employees for spouse and dependent medical coverage. The Board has the sole authority for 
setting life and health in urance premiums for the Plan. Per Section 12-15-15 (10) Mississippi Code Ann. 
(1972), a retired employee electing to purchase retiree life and health insurance must pay the full cost of 
such insurance premium. If the Board determined actuarially that the premium paid by the participating 
retirees adversely affects the overall cost of the Plan to the State, then the Board may impose a premium 
urcharge, not to exceed 15%, upon such participating retired employees who are under the age for 

Medicare eligibility and who are initially employed before January 1, 2006. For participating retired 
employees who are under the age for Medicare eligibility and who are initially employed on or after 
January 1, 2006, the Board may impo e a premium surcharge in an amount the Board determined 
actuarially to cover the full cost of insurance. The Plan offers a Base option and a elect option for 
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health benefits for non-Medicare participants. The Plan includes a separate coverage level for Medicare 
eligible retirees, Medicare Eligible surviving spouses, and Medicare eligible dependents of retirees and 
surviving spouses. 

Contributions. 

The Board has the sole authority for setting life and health insurance premiums for the Plan. The 
required premiums vary based on the plan selected and the type of participant. Employers pay no 
premiums for retirees while employees' premiums are funded primarily by their employer. Contributions 
to the OPEB plan from the College were $159,678 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources related to OPEB 

At June 30, 2018, the College reported a liability of $3,745,544 for its proportionate share of the net 
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability 
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
basis for the College's proportion is determined by comparing the employer's average monthly 
employees participating in the Plan with the total average employees participating in the Plan in the fiscal 
year of all employers. The allocation was utilized because the level of premiums contributed by each 
employer is the same for any employee regardless of plan participation elections made by the employee. 
At the measurement date of June 30, 2017, the College's proportion was 0.4774% percent. This was an 
increase from 0.4691 % percent from the proportionate share as of the measurement date of June 30, 
2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the College recognized OPEB expense of $195,992. At June 30, 2018, 
the College reponed defe1Ted utflows of resource and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Total 
Changes in proportion and differences between college 

contribution and proportionate share of contributions $ 57,469 $ $ 57,469 
Changes of assumptions (190,722) (190,722) 
College's contributions subsequent to the measurement date 159,678 159,678 

$ 217,[47 $ (190,722) $ 26,425 
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$159,678 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from College 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to the net OPEB 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years Ending 
June 30 Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Total 

2019 $ 10,082 $ (33,460) $ (23,378) 
2020 10,082 (33,460) (23,378) 
2021 10,082 (33,460) (23,378) 
2022 10,082 (33,460) (23,378) 
2023 10,082 (33,460) (23,378) 

Thereafter 7,059 (23,422) (16,363) 

Totals $ 57,469 $ (190,722) $ (133,253) 

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Long-term Investments Rate of Return, net ofOPEB plan 
investment expense, including inflation 

Municipal Bond Index Rate: 
Measurement Date 
Prior Measurement Date 

Year FNP is projected to be depleted: 
Measurement Date 
Prior Measurement Date 

Single Equivalent Interest Rate, net of OPEB plan investment 
expense, including inflation: 

Measurement Date 
Prior Measurement Date 

Health Care Cost Trends: 
Medicare Supplemental Claims Pre-Medicare 
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3.00 percent 

3.25-18.50 percent, including wage inflation 

NIA 

3.56 percent 
3.0 l percent 

2017 
20l6 

3.56 percent 
3.01 percent 

7.75 percent for2017 decreasing to an 
ultimate rate of 5.00 percent by 2023 
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Both pre-retirement and post-reti(ement mortality rates were based on the RP 2014 Healthy Annuitant 
Blue Collar Table projected with Scale BB to 2022, male rates et forward I year and adj u ted by I 06% 
for males at all ages, and females adjusted to 90% for ages less than 76, 95% for age 76, 105% for age 78 
and 110% for ages 79 and greater. Po L-disability mortality rates were based on the RP 2014 Disabled 
Retiree Mortality Table set forward 4 year for males and 3 years for females. 

The demographic actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study dated April 18, 2017. 

The remaining actuarial assumptions (e.g., initial per capita costs, health care cost trends, rate of plan 
participation rates of plan election, etc.) used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on a review of 
recent plan experience done concurrently with the June 30, 2017 valuation. 

The plan had no assets as of the measurement date of 2017. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2017 was 3.56 
percent. Since the Prior Measurement Date, the Discount Rate has changed from 3.01 % to 3.56%. 

Since no trust was set up as of June 30, 2017, there was no projection of cash flows for the Plan and the 
Plan was projected to be depleted in 2017. 

The discount rate determinati. n will u e a municipal bond rate to the exLent the trusl i projecred Lo run 
out of money before all benefits, re paid. T he rate u ed, if necessary, for thi purpo e i. the average of 
the Bond Buyer General ObligaLion 20-year Municipal Bond Index Rates during lhe month of June 
published at the end f each week by the Bond Buyer. 

Sensitivity of the College's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. 
The fo llowing pr ent the C llege' s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as what the 
College' proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is ! -percentage-point lower (2.56 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (4.56 percent) than the 
current discount rate: 

(2.56%) Rate (3.56%) (4.56%) 
Net OPEB liability $ 3,844,465 $ 3,745,544 $ 3,671,881 

Sensitivity of the College's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare 
cost trend rates. The following presents the College's proporcionate ·hare of the net OPEB liability, as 
well as what the College' pr porLionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were alculated 
using heallhcare cost trend rates that are I-percentage-point lower or I-percentage-point higher than the 
current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase 
Net OPEB liability $ 3,459,262 $ 3,745,544 $ 4,072,367 
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OPEB plan fiduciary net position. The fiduciary net position for the OPEB plan was zero as of June 30, 2017, the measurement date. Therefore, no separately issued 
financials were prepared. Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position for June 30, 2018 and going forward will be available in separately issued 
financial reports available on the Mississippi Department of Finance and Administration 's website. 

15. Functional Classification of Expenses. 

The College's operating expenses by functional classification were as follows for the year ended June 30, 2018: 

Scholarships Depreciation 
Salaries Fringe OPEBand Contractual and and 

Functional Classification and Wa~ ~ Benefits _ Pension Travel Services Utilities FeUowsb iE_s Commodities Amortization Other Total 

Instruction $ 18,897,973 $ 2,541,818 $ $ 174,773 $ 2,538,887 $ 35,521 $ 436,876 $ 912,238 s $ - $ 25,538,086 
Academic support 902,925 142,883 339 13,807 89,384 1,149,338 
Student services 3,013,847 468,634 242,882 512,741 591,736 533,555 66,724 5,430,!19 
Institutional support 3,?Cfi,937 574,357 34,011 1,383,204 204,191 637,046 6,539,746 
Operation of plant 3,307,234 749,137 662 4,470,202 1,420,557 2,624,790 44 12,572,626 
Student aid 4,785,6Cfi 51,023 4,836,629 
Auxiliary enterprises 1,392,697 370,836 9 816,439 362,911 4,040,851 21,711 7,005,454 
OPEB expense 195,992 - 195,992 
Pens ion expense 9,457,682 9,457,682 
Depreciation and amortization 3,796,891 3,796.891 

Total Operating Expenses J______l_l,221,613 _ $ 4,847,665 S 9,653,674 _ $ 452,676 S _1. 735,28Q $ 1,818,989 $ 5,814,218 U ,405,~ J..1796,891 $ 776,548 $ 76,522,563 
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16. Prior Period Adjustment. 

17. 

Unrestricted Net Po it ion at the beginning of the 2018 fiscal year was , djusted for the recognition of a tax 
etllement made between the College and Marshall County to pay ad valorem taxes that had been omitted in 

prior years. 

Unrestricted Net Position also had a prior period adjustment related to the implementation of GASB 75. This 
new statement requires the College to record liabilities, deferred inflows, deferred outflows, and expenses 
related to OPEB. 

A summary of significant Net Position adjustments for the year ended June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Explanation Armunt 
L Marshall County Settlement: 

Long-term receivable $ 900,000 
2. Implementation ofGASB 75: 

Net OPES liability (3,830,182) 
Defen-ed outflows-implicit rate subsidy 

calculated for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 147,377 

Total prior peliod adjustment $ (2,782,805) 

Risk Management. 

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees or students; and natural di asters. The College carries commercial 
insurance for the e risks. , ettled claims resulting from these insured risks have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

18. Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund. 

The College maintains a elf-funded unemploym nt compen ation fund. Thi fund ex i t. to provide a 
mechani. m for the College to fund and budget tbe cost f providing unemployment benefits to eligible former 
employe . The fund does not pay benefits directly t.o the e former college employee · rather it reimburse the 
Mi · i . ippi Employment Security Commi ion for benefits it pays directly to these individuals. The fund is 
required to be maintained at a level equal to 2% of the first $6,000 of salary for each full-time employee. At 
June 30, 2018, the fund was adequately funded with a balance of $117,237. 

19. Concentrations. 

The College receives a significant portion of its revenues from federal and state funded program and grants. 
Future funding of these programs is necessary for the College to continue the current level of programs and 
cour es offered. 
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Federal Grants - The College has received federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to audit by the 
grantor agencies. Entitlements to these resources are genera lly conditi.onal upon compLiance with the terms and 
condition of the grant agreement and applicable federal regulation, including the expenditw·e of resource for 
allowable purpo es. Any di allowance re ulting from Lh grantor audit may become a liability of the College. 

Litigation - The College is party to legal proceedings, many of which occur in the normal course of operations. 
It is not possible at tJ1e present time to e timat the ultimate outcome or liability, if any, to the College with 
respect to the various proceedings. However, the College's legal counsel believes that the ultimate liability 
resulting from thee law ui ts will not have a material adver e effect on the financial position of the College. 

21. Consistency Between Reporting Periods. 

Due to the classification of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, immaterial inconsistencies may exist 
between reporting periods. 

22. Subsequent Events. 

Events that occur after the Statement of Net Position date but before the financial statements are available to be 
issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence 
about conditions that existed at the Statement of Net Position date are recognized in the accompanying financial 
tatemem . ~ ub equent events which provide evidence about conditions that exi tee! aft.er the Statement of Net 

Po ition date require disclo ur in the ac ompanying note . Management of North we t Mi i ippi Community 
College evaluat d the act ivity of the College through ebruary 7 20 19, and determined that the fo llowing 
sub equent event have occurred requiring di losure in the note. to the fina ncia l . tatement : 

On January 10, 2019, The College ha approved a contract for s ite repair at Lhe Lafayette Yalobu ha Technical 
Center in the amount of $322,520. Ther are al. o projects that are in design pha es with architects for future 
renovation and new con lru Lion. These projects have not been formally bid so no fund are obligated at lhi 
Lime. 
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De cription of Organization and ummary of Sjgnificam Accounti.og Policies 

Organizati n 

The Northwest Mi is ·ippi Community College Foundation (the "Foundation") is a non-profit organization 
located on the Northwe t Mi sis ippi omrnunity College's (the "College") campus. The purpose of the 
·oundati n i to rai fund Lo assist the college perform its mis ion and to provide scholarsh ips for 
qualifying student o f the College. The Foundation is a component unit of the College. The oundation 
has in the pa. t raised fund by seeki ng donation and sponsoring fund-raising events. 

Ba i of Accounting and Financial Statement Pre emation 

The financial tatement of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrua l basi of accounting in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principle . This require net a . et and revenue gains and 
lo e to be c la ified based on donor imposed re triction . Accordingly, net as ets of the Foundation and 
change therein are clas ified and reported a ~ !lows: 

Unrestricted- Resources over which the board of directors has discretionary control. 
Temporarily R tricted- Tho e re ource, ubje t to donor impo ed re trictions which will be sati fied 
by action of the oundat ion or pa age of time. 
Permanently Restricted- Tho e resource ubjecl to a donor imposed r triction that they be maintained 
p rmanently by the Foundation. 

Revenu Recognition 

Donations received are recorded a unre tricted , temporarily re tricted, or permanently re tricted upporl 
depending on th existence and nature of any d nor r Lriction . When a stipu lated time re triction ends or 
when a purpo. e restriction is accompli hed, temporarily restricted n ta ers are reclas ified to unrestricted 
net a et and are reported in the iatement of A tivities a 'nel a et relea ·ed from restrictions.· 

U e ofE timates 

The preparation of financial tatement in conformity with generally accepted accounting principle. 
require management to make e t.imate and a sumptions that affect the reported amount of ·a set and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent a. set and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

Ca.hand Ca h Equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalents include certain investments in highly liquid debt instruments with original 
maturitie of three month or less, except if those account are used to temporarily hold endowment funds 
until appropriate inv tment can be identified. Funds r stricted by donors for pecific purpo e are shown 
as non-current assets. 

Promise to Give 

Promises to give are unconditional promises that are recognized as revenue when the promise is received. 
Promises that are expected to be collected in less than one year are reported at net realizable value. 
Promises that are expected to be collected in more than one year are recorded at fair value at the date of 
promise. That fair value is computed using a present value technique applied to anticipated cash flows. 

Amortization of the r ulting discount is recognized as additional donation revenue. Management has 
determined that no allowance for uncollectible accounts is necessary. This policy was adopted for the year 
2013 and was not applied retroactively. 
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Income Taxes 

The Foundar.i n i exempt from fi deral income taxes under lnternal Re\lenue Service Code Se tion 50 I (c) 
(3) of the 1986 lnternal Revenue Code and from state income taxe by the Mi is ippi Department of 
Rev nue. The Foundation i not las ified by the Internal Revenue ervice as a private ~ undation. The 

oundati n ha determined that it doe. not have any materia l unrecognized tax benefits or obligations a of 
December 31, 2017. Fi cal years ending on or after December 3l 2014, remain ubje L Lo examination by 
federal and state tax authorities. 

[nve tments 

The surplus funds are invested in Merrill Lynch managed holding accounts and bank certificates. 

Investment in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debl 
securitie · are reported at their fair values in the tatemenl f financial po ition. Unrealized gains or los e 
are included in the change in net assets. Investment income and ga i.n r ' Lricted by a donor are reported a 
increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions are met (either by the p· ag f time or by u. e) in the 
reporting period in which the income and gains are re ognized. 

Endowed funds are invested in the same manner as other funds. Changes in market value of endowed 
funds are reflected in temporarily restricted funds. 

Volunteer Labor 

Employees of the College perform services for the Foundation. The services performed are recorded at fair 
market value. The fair market values were determined by using rates paid these individuals by the College. 

2. Office Space 

The Foundation receives free use of office space in the College's administration building. No amount has 
been included in the financial statement for thi use, f facilities. 

3. Inve ·tmeot 

Investments made by the Foundation that are included on the balance sheet are summarized at fair market 
values: 

Bank Certificate of Deposit 
Merrill Lynch Managed Ho !dings: 

TMA/Lord Abbett Taxable 
TMA/Neuberger Bennan 
TMA/MFSLCV 
TMA/Loomis Sayles Large Cap Growth 

Foreign Equities 
TMA/MFS Clearbridge ValCore Intl. EQ 
TMA/MFS Inst. Intl. Growth 
TMA/London Co. Dividend Focused 
TMA/RBA Rish-Bal. GlBIErF Strategy 

Total Managed Holdings 

Total Investments 
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$ 100,297 

2,708,302 
2,241,964 
1,201,931 
1,201,258 

454,620 
455,891 
832,188 

l 621,442 

10,717,596 

$ 10,817,893 
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Due to the level of risk associated with certain ecurities, change in values in investments will po. "ibly 
occur in the near term and that such change c uld materially affect the amounts reported in the Statement 
of Net Po ition. 

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the statement of 
activities: 

Temporarily 

Total Unrestricted Restricted 

Dividend and Interest Income $ 232,531 $ $ 232,531 
Interest 2,040 2,040 
Unrealized Gains (Losses) 877,377 877,377 

Total $ 1,111,948 $ 2,040 $ 1,109,908 

Merrill Lynch nets its fees out of income and did not report them separately. 

Fair Value Mea urement. 

FASS ASC 820-1,0, Fair Value Measurements, e tabli he a framew rk for mea uring fair value. That 
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs t valuation technique used to 
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadju ted quoted pric in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilitie (Level l mea urements) and lhe lowest priority to un b ervable input. 
(Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hi rarchy under FA B ASC 820-10 are 
described as follows: 

Levell 

Level 2 

Level 3 

Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets. 

Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets. 

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets. 

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability. 

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data 
by correlation or other means. 

Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There 
have been no changes in the methodologies used at December 3 l, 2017. 

Mutual Funds. Valued at the closing price reported in the active markets in which the individual securities 
are traded. 
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The preceding methods described may produce a fair valu calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflected of future fair values. Furtherm()r , although the organization believes its 
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different 
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 
different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the organization's assets at fair value 
as of December 31, 2017. 

Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total 

Mutual Funds $ 10,717,596 $ $ $ 10,717,596 

There have been no assets transferred between categories. 

5. Endowment Fund 

Permanently restricted net assets at December 31, 2017 consist of endowment funds established to provide 
scholarships for qualifying students of Northwest Mississippi Community College. Contributions to the 
endowment fund are subject to donor restrictions that stipulate the original principal of the gift is to be held 
and invested by the Foundation indefinitely and income from the funds is to be expended for scholarships. 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are 
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. No endowment 
funds are received that do not have donor-imposed restrictions. 

The Foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as 
requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of donor-restricted 
endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. Endowment agreements between the 
Foundation and its donors include explicit donor stipulations that endowed principal is to be held in sacred 
trust in perpetuity. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as permanently restricted net 
assets (1) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (2) the original value of 
subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (3) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in 
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added 
to the fund. 

The Foundation classifies as temporarily restricted net assets all investment income, inclusive of interest, 
dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses earned on the Invested assets within the endowment 
fund, and the investment income earned has been restricted as to Its use by donors. These amounts are 
released from restriction once they are appropriated for expenditure by the Investment Policy Committee. 
The percent of the endowed funds to be awarded for scholarships will be recommended annually by the 
Investment Policy Committee subject to approval by the Board of Directors. Amounts to be awarded vary 
depending on the amount of the gift, prevailing interest rates and tuition costs. 

The composition of endowment net assets and the changes in endowment net assets for the year ending 
December 31, 2017 are presented on the statement of activities as permanently restricted net assets. 

6. Promises to Give 

The Foundation has received a promise to give from a donor. The value of this pledge was $50,000 as of 
December 31, 2017. This pledge is designated to benefit the Northwest Mississippi Community College 
Workforce Development Program. This pledge is recorded in the financial statements as promises to give. 
It is due in less than one year. No allowance for uncollectibles has been established. 
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Promises to give consist of the following: 

Due in less than one year 

Total promises to give 

$ 50,000 

50,000 

7. Educational Related Activities 

The following expenses that were paid for the College were grouped as educational related activity. 

Supplies for NWCC Programs 
Student Account Related Expenses 
NWCC Program Travel Related 

Total E.ducation Related Expense 

$ 57,131 
70,564 
6,021 

$ 133,716 

8. Fund Raising Revenue and Exp nse 

9. 

The following revenue and expenses are a result of fund raising activities: 

Reveou Expense Net 

2+2 GolfToumarrent $ 34,535 $ 10,314 $ 24,221 
Bull-0-Rarna 16,426 11,461 4,965 
Rodeo 30,736 26,952 3,784 

Totals $ 81697 $ 48,727 $ 32970 

Other Concenu·ation 

The Foundation is dependent on receiving donation · in rder to grow and increa e its mission. It could 
possibly maintain its current level of operation without receiving the current level donations. 

Many of the donations come from former students, faculty and their families, and friends of the College. 
Other donations come from civic minded citizens and businesses in the College's service area. 

10. Related Party Tran actio.ns 

One board member's family owns and operates a golfing facility in the area, Cherokee Valley Golf Club. 
The Foundation paid $6,956 for 2017, in connection with a golf tournament held on that golf course to rai 
money for the 2+2 Scholarship Initiative. 
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11. 2+2 Scholarship lniliative 

In 2003, the Foundation ' s board approved a partnersh ip arrangement with the Univer ity of Missi 1pp1 
Foundation ("UM'). Th goal of this arrangement i Lo rai $1,125,000 to use for scholarships to benefit 
residents of Desoto County attending lhe Desoto Center campus. 

Northwest Mi i ippi Community College pr vide · for the first two years of education and the UM 
provide the next two year . Thi parlner hip i known a the 2+2 Scholarship Initialive. The UM will 
receive 75% of these fund and th Foundali n will receive 25%. 

The Foundation sent UM $11,278 during 2017 and owed UM $12,110 at December 31, 2017. 

The Foundation receives funds and pays all expenses related to the 2+2 Scholarship Golf Tournament. The 
tournament revenues are split 50% to each UM Foundation and NWCC Foundation. The UM Foundation 
receives other contributions related to the 2+2 Scholarship Initiative. Funds are being divided on a timely 
basis. 

12. Royalty Agreement 

!Ji May 2005 th Foundation entered an agre menl with Pearson Education Publishing allowing the 
Colleg to cu tomize mathematic and biology textbooks. The Foundation receive a . 10 per bo k royalty. 
The royalty inc me is designated for u e by the mathematics and biology department. Th Founcla:tion 
received $16,952 for 2017. 

13 . In-Kind Donation. 

The College provides staffing and other expense for the Foundation. The amount attributable to this 
expense totaled $338,291 in 2017. 

14. Temporarily Restricted Net Asset 

This is composed of funds raised for specific purposes that have not currently been met. When the 
proposed use of these funds is met, these funds will be transferred to endowed or released to umestricted 
funds. 

15. Permanently Restricted Net A sets 

Permanently restricted net assets of $8,357,022 at 2017 are restricted to investments in perpetuity, the 
income from which is expendable to support scholarships for the College's students 

16. Sub equenl Event 

Events that occur after the statement of financial position but before the financial statements are available 
to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide 
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date are recognized in the 
accompanying financial statement . Sub equent event which provide evidence about conditions that 
exi ted after the tatement of financial po ition dat r quire di closure in the accompanying not s. 
Management of Northwest Mi i ippi Community College Foundation evaluated the activity of the 
Foundation through May 15, 2018, and determined that no further disclosures are necessary. 
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Schedule of the College ' s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability: 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

2015 2016 
College's proportion of the net pension liability 0.4780% 0.4830% 

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 58,020,449 $ 74,662,277 $ 

College's covered payroll 29,179,453 30,312,201 

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 198.84% 246.31% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 67.21% 61.70% 

2017 
0.4746% 

84,775,411 $ 

30,231,738 

280.42% 

57.47% 

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of June 30th of the year prior to the fiscal year presented. 

Schedule of College Contributions (PERS): 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

Contractually required contribution 

Contnbutions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

College's covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
payroll 

2015 
$ 4,774,177 

4,7]4,177 

$ 

30,312,201 

15.75% 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of the schedule: 

$ 

$ 

2016 2017 
4,761,501 $ 4,838,109 $ 

4)61,501 4,838,109 

$ $ 

30,231,738 30,718,147 

15.75% 15.75% 

2018 
0.4790% 

79,626,057 

30,718,147 

259.22% 

61.49% 

2018 
4,761,198 

4,761,198 

30,231,697 

15.75% 

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASB No. 68 was implemented in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, 
and, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the College has only presented information for the years in which information is available. 
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Schedule of the College , Proportionate Share of the Net OPES Liabil i.ly: 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

College's proportion of the total OPEB liability 

College's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 

College's covered-employee payroll 

College's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
OPEB liability 

$ 

2018 
0.4774% 

3,745,544 

30,231,697 

12.39% 

0.00% 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of the schedule: 

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of June 30th of the year prior to the 
fiscal year presented. 

Thi schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASB No. 75 was 
implemented in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and, until a full I 0-year trend is compiled, the College has only 
presented information for the years in which information is available. 

Schedule of Coll ge onlributions (OPEB): 

Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 

contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

College's covered-employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee 

payroll 

2018 
$ 159,678 

159,678 

$ 

30,231,697 

0.53% 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of the schedule: 

This chedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASB No. 75 was 
implemented in the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 I 8, and, until a full JO-year trend is compi led the College has only 
presented information for the years in which information is available. 
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Pen ion Schedule 

1) Changes of assumptions 

2017: 
• The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to theRP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table 

projected wilh Scale BB to 2022. Small adjustments were also made to the Mortality Table for disabled 
lives. 

• The wage inflation assumption was reduced from 3.75% to 3.25%. 
• Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, disability rates and service retirement rates were also 

adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience. 
• The percentage of active member disabilities assumed to be in the line of duty was increased from 6% to 

7%. 

2016: 
• The assumed rate of interest credited to employee contributions was changed from 3.50% to 2.00% 

2015: 
• The expectation of retired life mortality was changed to theRP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table 

projected to 2016 using Scale BB rather than the RP-2000 Mortality Table, which was used prior to 2015. 
• The expectation of disabled mortality was changed to the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table, rather than the 

RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table, which was used prior to 2015. 
• Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rate , disability rates and service retirement rates were also 

adju ted to more clo ely refle -tactual experience. 
• Assumed rates of salary increases were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and anticipated experience. 
• The price inflation and investment rate of return assumptions were changed from 3.50% to 3.00% and 

8.00% to 7.75%, respectively. 

2) Change in benefit provisions. 

2016: 
• Effective July l, 2016, the interest rate on employee contributions shall be calculated ba:ed on the money 

market rate as published by the Wall Street Journal on December 31st of ea h preceding year with a 
minimum rate of one percent and a maximum rate of five percent 

3) Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions 

The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedule of employer contributions are calculated as of June 30, 
two years prior to lhe end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported (June 30, 2015 valuation for the June 
30, 2017 fiscal year end). The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine the most recent 
contribution rate reported in that schedule: 

Actuarial cost method 

Anx:ntiz.ation method 

Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Price inflation 
Salary increase 
lnves tment rate of return 
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Level percentage of payroll, open 
33.9 years 

5-year smoothed market 
3.00 percent 
3.75 percent to 19.00 percent, including inflation 
7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense including 

inflation 
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OPEB chedule 

1) Changes of assumptions 

2017: 
• The discount rate was changed from 3.01 % for the prior Measurement Date to 3.56% for the current 

Measurement Date. 

2) Change in benefit provisions. 

2017: 
• none 

• 
• 

3) Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions 

Actuarially Determined onLributions rates, as a percentage of payroll, used to determine the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution amounts in the Schedule of Employer Contributions are calculated as of the most recent 
Valuation Date. The following actuarial methods and assumptions (from the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation) were 
used to determine contribution rates reported in the schedule for the year ending June 30, 2017: 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Price inflation 
Salary increase, including wage inflation 
Initial health care cost trend rates Medicare 

Supplement Claims Pre-Medicare 
Ultimate health care cost trend rates Medicare 

Supplement Claims Pre-Medicare 
Year of ultimate trend rates Medicare Supplement 

Claims Pre-Medicare 
Long-term investment rate of return, net of pension 

plan investment expense, including price inflation 
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Level dollar 
30 years, open 
Market Value of Assets 
3.00 percent 
3.25 percent to 18.50 percent 

7.75 percent 

5.00 percent 

2022 

3.56 percent 
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Federal Gran tor/Pass -through Gran tor/ Program or Cluster Title 

U. . Department of ybor 
WIA - Cluster: 
Pass-through program.5 from: 

Mississ ippi Department of Employment Security 

WIA/WIOA - Adult Program 

WIA/WIOA - Dislocated Workers Formula Grant 

South Delta Planning and Development District 
WIA/ WIOA - Adult Program 
WIA/WIOA - National Emergency Grant 

Three Rivers Planning and Development District 
WIA/WIOA - Adult Program 
WIA/WIOA - Youth Activities 
WIA/WIOA - Dislocated Worker Formula Grant 

Total WIA/WIOA Cluster 

Total U.S. Department ofl.abor 

Veteran. Aclrninistratjon 
Post-911 Veteran Educational Assistance 

U.S. Depanment ofF.ducation 
Student Financial Aid - Cluster: 

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG) 
Federal Work-study Program (FWS) 
Federal Pell Grant Program 
Federal Direct Student Loans 

Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 

TRIO - Student Support Services 

Pass-through programs from: 
Mississippi Community College Board 

Adult Education - State Grant Program 
Mississippi Department of Education 

Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 

Total U.S. Department of Education 

U .. Departme nt of Health and Human e rvices 
Pass-through programs from: 

Family Resource Center of North Mississippi 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

Mississippi Community College Board 
Child Care and Development Block Gtant (CCDBG) 

Mississippi Corridor Consortium 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

Mississippi Institutions of Higher Learning 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Total 

Less: Student Joans not reported on SRECNA 

Total reconciled federal expenditures 

Federal 
CFDA 

Numb er 

17.258 

17.278 

17.258 
17.277 

17.258 
17.259 
17.278 

64.027 

84.007 
84.033 
84.063 

{2} 84.268 

84.042 

84.002 

84.048 

93.558 

93.575 

93.558 

93.558 

The notes to the Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule 
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Pass-through 
Entity /Grant 

Ide mifyrng Numb er 

N /A 

N /A 

17-AMP-200 
17-AMP-200 

17-09-10 
17-07-30 
17-09-10 

V002A 170025 

V048A180024 

N/ A 

1701MSCCDF 

NIA 

16-S90-33-6726-1 

Federal 
Expe nditures 

$ 30,482 

57 ,468 

10,000 
29,670 

827,306 
452,223 
246,988 

L,654,137 

1,654,137 

1,855 

355,676 
273,348 

16,695,306 
2,850,234 

20,174,564 

277,845 

457,748 

385,687 

21,295,844 

65 402 

227,720 

69,338 

25,000 

387,460 

$ 23,339,296 

-2,850,234 

20,489,062 
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Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards: 

1) Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying chedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award activity of 
lhe North we l Mi iss ippi Community College under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 
2018. The information in the S bedule is ()resented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the ched ul presents nl y a selected portion of the operations of the College, it 
i not intended LO and doe not present the financial po ition, changes in net position, or cash flows of the College. 

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the chedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.· Such expend itures are 
recognized following the cost principle contained in lhe Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expendiLUre are 
not allowable or are limited as to reimbur ement. egative amoums shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or 
red ii made in the normal course of busine Lo amount reported as expenditures in prior years. 

3) Indirect Cost Rate 

The College has not elected to use the IO-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

4) Loan or loan guarantee programs 

The federal award programs of the College had no outstanding loan balances nor were there any loan guarantees as of 
June 30 2018. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Northwest Mississippi Community College 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Northwest Mississippi Community College 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements which collectively 
comprise Northwest Mississippi Community College's basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated February 7, 2019. The financial statements of Northwest Mississippi Community College 
Foundation, Inc. were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Northwest Mississippi Community 
College's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Northwest Mississippi Community College's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Northwest Mississippi 
Community College's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northwest Mississippi Community College's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed ih accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

FRANKS, FRANKS, WILEMON & HAGOOD, P.A. 
Fulton, Mississippi 
February 7, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Board of Trustees 
Northwest Mississippi Community College 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Northwest Mississippi Community College's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0 MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of Northwest Mississippi Community College's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
Northwest Mississippi Community College's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations ; and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Northwest Mississippi Community College's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Northwest Mississippi Community College's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Northwest Mississippi Community 
College's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Northwest Mississippi Community College complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Northwest Mississippi Community College is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Northwest Mississippi Community College's 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opin ion on the 
effectiveness of Northwest Mississippi Community College's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A material weakness in internal oontrof over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over com pliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

n,~xs I fr~ I 'tli~ ,.~ "- V.A. 
FRANKS, FRANKS, WILEMON & HAGOOD, P.A. 
Fulton, Mississippi 
February 7, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Northwest Mississippi Community College 

Partners 

Gary Franks, CPA 

Bryon Wilemon, CPA 

Jonathan Hagood, CPA 

Rudolph Franks, CPA (emeritus) 

We have audited the financial statements of Northwest Mississippi Community College as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report dated February 7, 2019. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. The financial statements of Northwest 
Mississippi Community College Foundation, Inc. were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we have 
also performed procedures to test compliance with certain laws and regulations. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. 

The results of those procedures and our audit of the financial statements did not disclose any instances of 
noncompliance with state laws and regulations . 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, entities with accreditation overview, and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. However, thls report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not 
limited. 

FRANKS, FRANKS, WILEMON & HAGOOD, P.A. 
Fulton, Mississippi 
February 7, 2019 
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NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2018 

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness identified? 
Significant deficiency identified 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(s) identified 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Cluster of Programs - WIA: 

17.258 
17.259 
17.277 
17.278 

WIA - Adult Program 
WIA- Youth Activities 
WIA - National Emergency Grant 
WIA - Dislocated Worker Formula Grant 

Cluster of Programs - Student Financial Aid: 

84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program 
84.033 Federal Work-Study Program 

unmodified 

Yes_X_ No 

Yes X None reported 

Yes _ X_No 

Yes X No 

Yes X None reported 

unmodified 

Yes X No 

84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 
84.268 Federal Direct Student Loans 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 
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$ 750,000 

X Yes No 



NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2018 

SECTION 2- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS: 

There were no findings related to the financial statements. 

SECTION 3-FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS: 

There were no findings related to federal award programs. 
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